AGENDA

P.

1



AGENDA

City of Franklin, Kentucky
City Commission

July 22, 2019
Special Called Meeting — 7:00 PM

Gentlemen’s Unlimited Pavilion
Lincoln Park - John J. Johnson Avenue

Franklin, Kentucky

In Case of Rain Meeting Will Be Moved to City Hall @ 6:00 PM

I Call to Order and Member Roll Call
I Opening Prayer
1L Approval of Minutes

e Approval of Meeting Minutes from July 8, 2019 Regular Session Pg. 5

Iv. Recognitions

e Harman Proclamation Pg. 11
V. Community Services
e SKYCTC On Track Scholarship Program Update Pg. 13

Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

e Discussion and/or possible action regarding Purchase of Service Vehicle on behalf of Pg. 18
Franklin-Simpson Parks Presenter: Shaunna Cornwell, Finance Director

VI General Government
e Discussion and/or possible action regarding Appointment to F-S Planning & Zoning Commission Pg. 21

Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

e Discussion and/or possible action regarding City/County Franchise Contract for Waste Services Pg. 22
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

» Discussion and/or possible action regarding Proposed Parking Ordinance Pg. 56
Presenter: Kevin Allen, Code Enforcement Officer

P. 2



VII.

VIII.

IX.

Utilities

e Discussion and/or possible action regarding Treatment Plant Aeration Basin Rehabilitation Pg. 59
Presenter: Trent Coffee, WWTP Supt.

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Transfer of Personnel : Pg. 60
Presenter: Chris Klotter, Public Works Superintendent

Ordinances

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-016 titled: 4n Ordinance Rezoning Pg. 64

409 Hudspeth Avenue from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-1 (Single Family); the Vacant

Lot Located on 403 Brick Street from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-2 (Single Family
“and Two Family); and the 2.50 Acre Vacant Lot Located on Morris Street and Hudspeth
Avenue from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-1S (Single Family Residential)

e Possible First Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-017 titled: An Ordinance Pg. 69
Approving and Relating to an Exclusive Franchisee to Collect, Transport and Dispose ’
of Commercial and Residential Solid Waste within the City of Franklin and Simpson
County, Kentucky Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Atforney

Comments and Questions from the Public

Adjournment

P.3



MINUTES

P. 4



MINUTES OF REGULAR SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN
CITY COMMISSION

July 8, 2019
City Hall

117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin, Kentucky City Commission met in Regular Session at 12:00 Noon, Monday,
July 8, 2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; City
Personnel Director/Deputy Clerk, Rita Vaughn; City Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell;
City Police Chief, Roger Solomon; Public Works Superintendent Chris Klotter; City Clerk,
Cathy Dillard; Tammie Carey, City Community Development Director; Daniel Reetzke, Tax
Collector/ABC Administrator; F-S Human Rights Commission Director, Donzella Lee;
Franklin Favorite/ WFKN media representative, Keith Pyles; Kim Robert, Franklin-Simpson
Farmers Market; Jerry Kamuf; Caitlyn Sperling, U.S. Census Bureau; and David Pierce and
Tom Otto from Faith Baptist Church.

Mayor Dixon called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon, and David Pierce from Faith Baptist
Church offered the opening prayer.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve the minutes as presented of the June 24, 2019, special called meeting of the Franklin
City Commission

Voting aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P. 5



HEAR THE PUBLIC

Mayor Dixon recognized Jerry Kamuf, who had asked to address the Commission regarding
an issue in his neighborhood. Mr. Kamuf indicated that he represented approximately 11
people who lived in the Southgate and College Street area. The residents of the area were
concerned about an overgrown hay field. Mr. Kamuf indicated the field had been cut over the
weekend.

Mayor Dixon and the Commission thanked Mr. Kamuf for attending the meeting. City
Manager Kenton Powell indicated that the property owner had been notified and provided
assurance that the field would be maintained regularly.

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Daniel Reetzke introduced Caitlyn Sperling, a Partnership Specialist from the U.S. Census
Bureau, regarding the upcoming Census 2020. Ms. Sperling provided information regarding
the importance of completing the census. In addition, she reviewed the timeline for
responding, and factors that contribute to undercounting as well as the long term financial
impact of undercounting. Ms. Sperling stressed that collaboration with local government was
vital in their efforts to ensure all residents are counted.

Community Development Director Tammie Carey introduced Kim Roberts from the Franklin-
Simpson Farmers Market. The Hometown Harvest Dinner will be held on Friday, July 19,
2019, in the West Cedar Street Alley. Pre-dinner festivities will begin at 6:00 PM in the City’s
public parking lot located on the corner of High Street and Madison Street with dinner to follow
at 7:00 PM in the Alley.

Mrs. Roberts thanked the City for their willingness to support the Farmers Market and the
Hometown Harvest Dinner fundraising event.

Community Development Director Tammie Carey addressed the Commission regarding the
Monday, July 22, 2019, Neighborhood Walk beginning at 6:00 PM with a special called City
Commission meeting to follow at the Gentleman’s Unlimited Club Pavilion at Lincoln Park
beginning at 7:00 PM. Carey also presented a map for the Neighborhood Walk.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to consider approval of a Resolution
supporting City Government Month and declaring September 2019 as City Government Month
in Franklin.

Upon motion by Commissioner Powell, seconded by Commissioner Bennett the Commission
unanimously approved Resolution F-2019 as follows:

P. 6



RESOLUTION NO. F-2019
CITY OF FRANKLIN

WHEREAS, civics education in Kentucky schools is important to ensure future generations are
engaged and involved in their local community and its governance;

WHEREAS, elementary schools are a prime location for the introduction of local government
principles and responsibilities;

WHEREAS, involving and informing students of local government programs and duties can
provide an opportunity for entire families to connect with vital city services and programs;

WHEREAS, there are 416 cities in Kentucky and 55 percent of the state’s population lives in a
city;
WHEREAS, “City Government Month” is a civics awareness campaign that educates

elementary school students about city services by providing teachers lesson plans, a coloring/activity book
and an implementation guide;

WHEREAS, “City Government Month” calls on city officials to get involved in their local
schools and in educating and engaging elementary school students in city government; and

WHEREAS, the Kentucky League of Cities Board of Directors has declared September 2019 as
City Government Month in Kentucky;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Franklin does hereby designate
September 2019 as “City Government Month” in the city.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that city officials and employees are encouraged to collaborate
with local elementary schools to educate students about their city government and to engage them in city
services.

Dated this 8" day of July, 2019.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to consider a proposed ordinance to

approve rezoning the following three parcels located in the City limits: (1) 409 Hudspeth

Avenue from I-1 to R-1; (2) 403 Brick Street (vacant lot) from I-1 to R-2; and, (3) a 2.5 acre

vacant lot located on Morris Street and Hudspeth Avenue from I-1 to R-1S. Commissioner
Powell and Commissioner Williams asked to sponsor the ordinance with first reading taking

place during the ordinance portion of the meeting.

City Manager Kenton Powell asked the Commission to approve Agreements for Services
approved for funding in the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 annual budget as follows:

Boys & Girls Club of Franklin-Simpson $ 35,000.00
F-S Chamber of Commerce 35,000.00
Southern KY Drug Task Force 20,000.00
Simpson County Friends of the Shelter 5,000.00
Simpson County Historical Society 5,000.00

Powell noted that the budget also approved funding for Franklin-Simpson Parks & Recreation
in the amount of $225,000.00 but an agreement is not required for funding.

P.7



Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreements for Services with the community service
organizations above-referenced.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Personnel Director Rita Vaughn asked the Commission to consider a revision to the City of
Franklin Personnel Policies and Procedures. This revision would change the effective date for
health, vision, dental, life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment for new
employees to be effective on the first day of the month following employment.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
authorize a revision to the City of Franklin Personnel Policies and Procedures to change the

effective date for health, vision, dental, life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment
for new employees to be effective on the first day of the month following employment.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

ORDINANCES

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided second summary reading of Ordinance No. 2019-015 titled:
Ordinance Annexing to the City of Franklin Approximately 5.39 Acres Located on Peden Mill
Road, Being Contiguous to the Existing City Limits of Franklin, Kentucky in Accordance with
the Comprehensive Plan of Annexation.

Motion was made by Commissioner Williams and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve Ordinance No. 2019-015 and was unanimously approved by the following roll call
vote:

Mayor Dixon Aye
Commissioner Powell Aye
Commissioner Williams Aye
Commissioner Bennett Ave
Commissioner Stewart Aye

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided first summary reading of Ordinance No. 2019-016 titled:
An Ordinance Rezoning 409 Hudspeth Avenue from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-1 (Single
Family); the Vacant Lot Located on 403 Brick Street from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-2 (Single
Family and Two Family); and the 2.50 Acre Vacant Lot Located on Morris Street and
Hudspeth Avenue from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-1S (Single Family Residential)

No action is taken on first reading of an ordinance.

P. 8



EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 12:55 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Williams and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of:

LAND ACQUISITION — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real
property by a public agency where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a
specific piece of property to be acquired for public use or sold by a public agency
{KRS 61.810(1)(b)}

PERSONNEL - Discussions or hearings which might lead to the appointment,
discipline, or dismissal of an individual employee or member {KRS 61.810(1)(f)}

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Entering Executive Session were Mayor Dixon; Commissioners Powell, Bennett, Williams and
Stewart; City Manager Kenton Powell; and City Attorney Scott Crabtree and Franklin Police
Chief Roger Solomon.

Chief Solomon exited Executive Session at 1:07 PM.

Public Works Director Chris Klotter entered Executive Session at 1:07 PM and exited
Executive Session at 1:13 PM.

At 1:18 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner
Powell to exit Executive Session and return to open session.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

OTHER COMMISSION BUSINESS

City Manager Kenton Powell reminded the Commission that the Kentucky League of Cities
meeting will be held September 24-27 in Covington, Kentucky.

Commissioner Bennett said the Simpson County Bicentennial events held over the weekend
were a great success. The Saturday events were postponed due to unpredictable weather and
ground saturation from heavy rain earlier in the week.

ADJOURNMENT

At 1:21 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Stewart to adjourn the regular meeting of the Franklin City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P. 9



RECOGNITIONS

P. 10



Proclamation
City of Franklin, Ventucky

WHEREAS, HARMAN of Franklin, Kentucky provides the City of Franklin a
unique opportunity to reflect on the lasting impact they have provided to our community;
and,

WHEREAS, HARMAN is a pioneer in the automotive sound industry and a
global industry leader that has consistently met the challenges of the future of automotive
sound components and have provided the citizens of Franklin, Kentucky the opportunity
to benefit from their commitment to our community; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin wishes to thank HARMAN for their willingness
to step forward as a leader in the manufacturing business sector and their generous
support of our schools, community organizations, and events; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Commission of the City of Franklin
do hereby recognize HARMAN as an industry leader in our community who will be
sorely missed.

PROCLAIMED this the 22nd day of July, 2019.

In witness whereof I have set my hand
and caused the City seal to be affixed

Larry Dixon, Mayor

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
P. 11



COMMUNITY
SKRVICES

P.12



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: July 17" 2019

SUBJECT: SKYCTC — On Track Scholarship update

Dr. James McCaslin, recently has been named the new Provost at SKYCTC. With his new
position Dr. McCaslin will be spending more time in Bowling Green KY. Dr. J ensured me he
will continue to be ingrained in the Franklin community. We wish Dr. J great success in his new
role.

Kelcie Richart with SKYCTC has been assigned to handle day to day activities at the Franklin
Campus. Kelcie will be providing the On Track Scholarship update on Monday’s commission
meeting.

The On Track Program is a scholarship for any Simpson County student to take college classes
at the Franklin Campus free of charge due to local sponsorships.

The area sponsors are:

City of Franklin $10,000
Simpson County $10,000
Franklin Bank & Trust $10,000
Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority $10,000
Kentucky Downs $10,000
Note:

On the following 4 pages are reference materials for you reference.

Thank You,
Kenton Powell

P.13



Southcentral Kentucky
Community & Technical
College Foundation

1845 Loop Drive

Bowling Green, KY 42101

July 1,2019 270/901-1116
270/901-1146 (Fax)
City of Franklin www.southcentral kctes.edu

Attn: Mr. Larry Dixon, Mayor

Attn: Mr. Kenton Powell, City Manager
117 West Cedar Street

P.0. Box 2805

Franklin, KY 42135-2805

Dear Sirs,

On behalf of the Southcentral Kentucky Community and Technical College Foundation, I
want to express my gratitude for the City of Franklin’s generous contribution to the
Simpson County On Track Scholarship Program. The contribution was received by the
SKYCTC Foundation, and a tax receipt is included below.

Southcentral Kentucky Community and Technical College has played an important role in
educating the citizens of Bowling Green and the surrounding area. By your thoughtful
action, you have joined with many others in helping us provide the resources to assure a
quality education for present and future generations. Thank you for your generosity!

Sincerely,

™

LJ‘(\’W/\“Ak U m g’f(\)‘\/ ’ “fY\LJi'\MCSqK

Heather Rogers x\g’v {}L&W)@—\V ((‘\2 MC‘Q ok ;%:

Foundation Executive Director SN BN f/ S R‘f‘w\ Y .

GIFT RECEIPT

City of Franklin
Amount: $10,000.00 Attn: Mr. Larry Dixon, Mayor;
Payment Method: Check #088717 Mr. Kenton POWGH, C]ty Manager
Designation: Simpson Co On Track Scholarship 117 West Cedar Street
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 P.0. Box 2805
Franklin, KY 42135-2805

Southcentral Kentucky Community and Technical College Foundation, Inc., is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization. Your
contribution is tax-deductible to the extent allowed by law. No goods or services were provided in exchange for your
generous financial donation.

SOUTHCENTRAL
SR FouNpATION
COMMUNITY CO LLEG E

&TECHN ICAL

_ KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND T




Kenton Powell

From: McCaslin, James B (Southcentral) <james.mccaslin@kctcs.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, July 2, 2019 10:12 AM

To: Kenton Powell

Cc: . Rogers, Heather L (Southcentral); Allen, Chantal W (Southcentral)
Subject: Simpson County On Track Scholarship Update

Dear Kenton,

Thank you for your continued support of the Franklin-Simpson High School students who earn college-level credit while
completing their high school studies. The investment of our community partners continues to play a vital role in the
educational attainment of our youth and the economic vitality of the community at large. 1 wanted to share a report of
how your investment was used during the last academic year.

Sehatarship Paid for
FO18-2030; 844,782

Simpson County On Track Scholarship Fund | 2018-2019
Highlights

Fall 2018 Semester
On Track Students: 46 students enrolled, earning 274

credit hours
On Track Students attend courses at the SKYCTC Franklin-
Simpson Center

Dual Credit Students: 162 students enrolled, earning 643
credit hours

Dual Credit Students attend courses at Franklin-Simpson High
School

Total charged to Scholarship for Fall 2018: $32,215.80
Total tuition covered by SKYCTC scholarship (SKYCTC’s
investment): $110,892.67

Spring 2019 Semester
On Track Students: 30 students enrolled, earning 127

credit hours
On Track Students attend courses at the SKYCTC Franklin-
Simpson Center

Dual Credit Students: 14 students enrolled, earning 70
credit hours

P. 15



Dual Credit Students attend courses at Franklin-Simpson High
School

Total charged to Scholarship for Spring 2019: $9576.57
Total tuition covered by SKYCTC scholarship (SKYCTC's
investment): $23,771.33

*Students also have access to scholarships from the Legislature,
which are accessed before the Simpson County On Track
Scholarship is used, stretching your investment dollar even
further.

For the Fall 2018 semester . ..

The Kentucky Dual Credit Scholarship paid $19,320.80
The Kentucky Work Ready Dual Credit Scholarship paid
$11,060.20

For the Spring 2019 semester . . .

The Kentucky Dual Credit Scholarship paid 51,013.88
The Kentucky Work Ready Dual Credit Scholarship paid
53,942.96

Thank you again for your continued support and investment,
Dr.J

Dr. James B. McCaslin

Provost

Southcentral Kentucky Community & Technical College
1845 Loop Drive

Bowling Green, KY 42101-3600

(270) 901-1104

SOUTHCENTRAL
KENTUCKY
rne COLLEGE

SKYCTC will operate on a four-day work week from May 13 to July 26, 2019. During this time, college departments will
operate from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday. Please note an exception to this schedule for the weeks of
Memorial Day and Independence Day. The college will be closed Monday, May 27 for Memorial Day and will be open the rest
of the week from 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. The college will be closed Thursday, July 4 and Friday, July 5 for the Independence
Day holiday

P. 16



Kenton Powell
P

_ ]
From: McCaslin, James B (Southcentral) <james.mccaslin@kctcs.edu>
Sent: Friday, July 12, 2019 11:50 AM
To: Judy Burr; Gary Broady (gbroady@fbtco.com); Alex Downing

(alex_downing@fbtco.com); Steve Thurmond (sthurmond@f-schamber.com); Mason
Barnes; Larry Dixon; Kenton Powell

Cc: Richart, Kelcie R (Southcentral)
Subject: SKYCTC Franklin-Simpson Center Leadership
Colleagues,

As you know, Dr. Neal recently named me SKYCTC’s new Provost. This created an opportunity for him to
evaluate the organizational structure of the college and streamline the senior-level positions within the

institution.

I’'m happy to share that the Franklin-Simpson Center will report through Academic Affairs, which is my
division. While many of us from SK'YCTC will continue to be in Franklin on a frequent basis, Dr. Neal has

asked Kelcie Richart to assume the day-to-day leadership of the campus for the next academic year.

For those of you who have already worked with Kelcie, I hope you will agree that she is an excellent choice.
Kelcie began working at the Franklin-Simpson Center while completing a graduate internship for her Masters
degree in Counseling and Students Affairs from WKU. Her internship project was to the assess the feasibility of
the KY FAME program, and was subsequently hired as the Success Coach for our SKY FAME program. In her
role, she already understands curriculum development and has an excellent working relationship with the
companies that sponsor students in the SK'Y FAME program. In addition to her professional qualifications,

Kelcie and her family are Franklin residents.
I want to share Kelcie’s contact information with you. Please also feel free to reach out to me at any time.

Kelcie Richart

175 Davis Drive
Franklin, KY 42134
270-901-1035 (office)
(270) 577-5619 (cell)
kelcie.richart@kctcs.edu

P.17



S FHAN ElN_=

———

MEMO
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
FROM: Shaunna Cornwell, Finance Director

DATE: July 22,2019
SUBJECT: Discussion Regarding Franklin-Simpson Park’s Purchase of a Service
Truck

Per Terry Joiner, Director of the Franklin-Simpson Parks, the Park has budgeted to
purchase a new service truck in the FY2020 Fiscal Year.

Mr. Joiner has requested permission to purchase this truck under the City of Franklin’s
Fleet Rate, i.e. the State’s Bid. This rate is substantially less and will provide a
significant savings for the Parks. Attached is the quote provided by Hunt Ford for a total
cost of $29,598 (less than the required amount to bid). Since the Park is an arm of us,
and we appoint one-half of the members of the board, the City Attorney has stated that
the Parks Board can use the City as a conduit in the purchase of the truck.

The City will be out no funds — the Park will pay for the vehicle in full. The City will
also not hold title to this vehicle.

Proposed Motion: Approve Terry Joiner, Director of the Franklin Simpson Parks & Rec,
to purchase a F250 from Hunt Ford, on behalf of the Park, under the umbrella of the
City’s fleet pricing. Authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents reflecting this
action, if requested or required.

P.18



Date: 06/11/19

Salesperson: Jimmy Falls

HUNT FORD CHRYSLER To  City of Franklin/ FS Parks
625 Garvin Lane

FRANKLIN, KY 42134

270-586-3281

Fax 270-586-8813

jimmy@huntauto.com

{ Jimmy Falls ;

1 | 2019 F-250 4X4 | 41,140.00 | 11,542.00 | 29,598.00

! j ; ‘
| é | ; !
i i _ : _ .

TAX, TITLE, AND LIC. ;

Fotal : _

Quotation prepared by: Jmmy Falls

This is a quotation on the goods named, subject to the conditions noted betow: (Describe any conditions
pertaining to these prices and any additional terms of the agreement. You may want to include contingencies
that will affect the quotation.)

THIS IS AN ESTIMATE ONLY. PRICES CQULD VARY DEPENDING ON REBATES AT THE TIME OF
DELIVERY.

Thank you for your busingssf

P.19



GENERAL

P. 20



MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: Kenton Powell, City Manager
SUBJECT:  Appointment to F-S Planning & Zoning Commission

DATE: July 22,2019

The Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission has a vacancy on their Board for a City
appointment following the resignation of Pat Jones. Mr. Jones was re-appointed to this board
last year for a four year term which expires on 9/30/2022.

Roy Tyler has expressed a desire to serve on the Planning & Zoning Commission so I would like
to recommend his appointment to fill the unexpired term of Pat Jones.

Proposed Motion: Recommend motion to approve the appointment of Roy Tyler to the
Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission to fill the unexpired term of Pat Jones
which expires on September 30, 2022.

P. 21



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: July 17" 2019

SUBJECT: City/County Sanitation Franchise Contract

The City/County governments are close to reaching a milestone concerning a combined
Sanitation Franchise Agreement. This activity was undertaken on January 31 at the
City/County Joint meeting. The governmental bodies voted and approved exploring the
feasibility to investigate the opportunity to synergize garbage collection services.

Since January Judge Barnes, Nicole Law, Shaunna Cornwell, Pete Reckard and I have met face
to face, held conference calls and exchanged emails numerous times, to what I feel will be a
good agreement for all residents of Simpson County.

To summarize the major takeaways:

e Term of the Sanitation Franchise Agreement is 6 years, with a renewal option of 7 years.

e Year one in the Sanitation Franchise Agreement, there will be no CPI (Consumer Price
Index) increase for Residential and Commercial customers until July 15 2020.

e Year two in the Sanitation Franchise Agreement, there is a CPI rate increase cap.

e No Residential recycling increase for the 1% term of the agreement. Term = 6 yrs.

Note:

On the following pages, for your reading pleasure, is the SIMPSON COUNTY AND CITY OF
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY EXCLUSIVE COMMERCAL AND RESIDENTIAL AMEND AND
RESTATED FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.

Proposed Action:
Request two sponsors from the Commission to have first reading of Ordinance No. 2019-017

plus approve the Mayor to sign all necessary materials.

P. 22



SIMPSON COUNTY AND CITY OF FRANKLIN , KENTUCKY
EXCLUSIVE COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL
AMENDED AND RESTATED FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement, hereinafter referred to as the
“Agreement,” made and entered into on this day of , 2019, by and between the
Simpson County, Kentucky, 100 Courthouse Square, Franklin, KY 42135, acting through the
Fiscal Court, herein after referred to as the “County,” City of Franklin, Kentucky, 117 West Cedar
Street, Franklin, Kentucky 42134, herein after referred to as the “City,” and Scott Waste Services,
LLC, a Kentucky limited liability company, 1212 Eastland Street, Bowling Green, KY 42102,
hereinafter referred to as the “Franchisee,” (individually a “Party” or collectively, the “Parties).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about September 4, 2013, the City and Franchisee entered into that certain
Exclusive Commercial and Residential Franchise Agreement, as subsequently modified, amended,
and/or extended (the “Original City Agreement”), for the collection, transportation, and disposal
of all commercial and residential Solid Waste, wastewater treatment plant waste, and oversized
goods within the Franklin Franchise Area;

WHEREAS, on or about October 1, 2016, the City and Franchisee amended that certain Exclusive
Commercial and Residential Franchise Agreement (the “First Amendment to the City
Agreement”);

WHEREAS, on or about June 16. 2015, the County and Franchisee entered into that certain
Exclusive Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Franchise Agreement (the “Original County
Agreement”), for the collection, transportation, and disposal of all residential, commercial and
industrial Solid Waste, wastewater treatment plant waste, and oversized goods within the Franklin
County Franchise Area; and

WHEREAS, the County and City wish to combine their respective agreements with Franchisee
to extend the term hereof, adjust the rates thereunder, and to otherwise modify the Original City
Agreement, as amended, and the Original County Agreement as provided for herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein,
the Parties mutually agree, represent and warrant, as follows:

SECTION I: DEFINITIONS

The following terms as used in this Agreement shall have the meaning set forth below:

1.1 “Agreement” — means this Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement, as the same may
from time to time be amended, modified, or supplemented in accordance with the
respective terms hereof, including attachments and exhibits and ordinances pertaining to

{00086301.DOC.}
P. 23



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

the collection of residential, commercial and industrial Solid Waste and wastewater
treatment plant waste.

“Commercial Solid Waste” — means all types of Solid Waste generated by stores, offices,
restaurants, hotels, motels, warehouses, and other service and non-manufacturing activities
and/or activities conducted outside of the designated industrial parks, to the extent that said
Solid Waste is not considered hazardous waste, excluding household and industrial Solid
Waste.

“Consumer Price Index” — means Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and
Clerical Workers. Expenditures Category “Water and Sewer and Trash Collection,”
published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.

“Convenience Center” — means a site located at 2416 Kenneth Utley Drive where residents
of Simpson County can drop off Solid Waste, which is not collected at the curb, for a fee.

“First Amendment to the Original City Agreement” — means that certain amendment to the
Exclusive Commercial and Residential Franchise Agreement entered into on or about
October 1, 2016 between the City and Franchisee.

“Franchise Area” — means the unincorporated areas of Simpson County and City of
Franklin Incorporated boundaries, including any future annexed area to the extent not
already provided under this Agreement as an unincorporated area of Simpson County.

“Hazardous Waste” — means waste, in any amount, which is defined, characterized or
designated as hazardous by the United States Environmental Protection Agency or
appropriate State agency by or pursuant to Federal or State law, or waste, in any amount,
which is regulated under Federal or State law. For purposes of this Contract, the term
Hazardous Waste shall also include motor oil, gasoline, paint and paint cans.

“Household Solid Waste” — means Solid Waste, including garbage and trash generated by
single and multiple family residences, bed and breakfast establishments, bunkhouses,
ranger stations, and crew quarters and recreational areas such as picnic areas, parks, and
campgrounds.

“Original City Agreement” — means that certain Exclusive Commercial and Residential
Franchise Agreement entered into on or about September 4, 2013 between the City and
Franchisee.

“Original County Agreement” — means that certain Exclusive Commercial and Residential
Franchise Agreement entered into on or about June 15, 2015 between the County and
Franchisee.

“Oversized goods” — means bulky items and white goods, including but not limited to
chairs, sofas, mattresses, bedsprings, carpet, toys, bicycles, tricycles, shingles, and

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 24



1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

2.1

appliances bearing proper certification of prior CFC removal, taken by County residents to
the convenience center or placed at the curb by City residents for collection

“Solid Waste” — means any garbage, refuse, sludge and other discarded material, including
solid, liquid, semi-solid, or contained gaseous material resulting from industrial,
commercial, mining (excluding coal mining wastes, coal mining by-products, refuse, and
overburden), agricultural operations and from community activities, but does not include
those materials including, but not limited to, sand, soil, rock, gravel or bridge debris
extracted as part of a public road construction project funded wholly or in part with state
funds, recovered material, special wastes as designated by KRS 224.50-760, solid or
dissolved material in domestic sewage, manure, crops, crop residue, or a combination
thereof which are placed on the soil for return to the soil as fertilizers or soil conditioners,
or solid or dissolved material in irrigation return flows or industrial discharges which are
point sources subject to permits under Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act, as amended or source, special nuclear or by-product material as defined by the Atomic
energy Act of 1954.

“Rate Modification Date” — means July 1 of each year.

“Recyclable Material” — means any process by which materials which would otherwise
become Solid Waste are collected, separated, or processed and reused or returned to use in
the form of raw materials. Materials that may be collected: plastic #1 and #2 (soft drink,
milk jugs, water bottles, etc.), metal cans (aluminum cans, steel food cans), Paper items —
newspaper, phonebooks, junk mail, magazines, computer paper, cereal boxes, and
cardboard. All items cleaned of food or liquid

“Residential Unit” — means a single family dwelling or one unit of a multi-family dwelling
or mobile home park which is served and billed as an individual residential account within
the Franchise Areas.

“Residential Yard Waste” — means leaves, brush, grass clippings, shrub and tree pruning,
and other vegetative matter resulting from residential landscape maintenance which is
suitable for composting which has been diverted and/or separated from the Solid Waste
stream by the resident and taken to the convenience center or placed at the curb by City
residents for collection.

“Unacceptable Waste” — means Hazardous Waste and any and all other waste which does
not meet the definition of residential or commercial Solid Waste and also includes liquid
waste, tires, dead animals, any burning or smoldering materials, car parts in contact with
any petroleum, batteries, freon, construction and demolition materials.

SECTION 1I: EXCLUSIVE RIGHT

Exclusive Right of Franchisee — The Franchisee shall have the exclusive right to collect
commercial and residential Solid Waste, wastewater treatment plant waste, and oversized

£00086301.DOC.}

P. 25



3.1

goods within the Franchise Area. County and City shall take all actions necessary to
enforce such franchise including, but not limited to, enacting ordinances allowing County
and City to enforce the franchise and assess penalties against parties who violate
Franchisee’s exclusive franchise, and bringing legal actions as necessary to enforce
Franchisee’s exclusive franchise. The Franchisee may independently enforce the
exclusivity provisions of this Agreement against third-party violators, including but not
limited to seeking injunctive relief and/or damages, and County and City shall use good-
faith efforts to cooperate in such enforcement actions brought by Franchisee.

SECTION 1II: SCOPE OF SERVICES

Collection - Residential

A.

Franchisee shall collect weekly from each residential unit within the Franchise Area
all Solid Waste deposited by the resident in 96 gallon carts at the curb; provided,
however, that Franchisee shall collect Solid Waste placed at locations other than
the curb for those customers who are elderly, disabled and/or that were having their
Solid Waste picked up by the previous Franchisee at an alternate location. A
maximum of one (1) cart and five (5) bags for County Residential Units and a
maximum of two (2) carts for City Residential Units will be collected per week.
The Franchisee may collect residential Solid Waste during the hours of 6:00 a.m.
and 6:00 p.m. taking efforts to minimize the noise and disturbance to residents. The
Franchisee shall leave the resident’s Solid Waste cart and property in a clean and
neat condition.

The Franchisee shall collect weekly from each City Residential Unit (including
duplexes, apartments, condominiums, townhouses and residential trailers) within
the Franchise Area all oversized goods placed at the curb including but not limited
to chairs, sofas, mattresses, bedsprings, carpet, toys, bicycles, tricycles, and
appliances bearing proper certification of prior CFC removal.

To the greatest extent possible the collection of residential Solid Waste and
oversized goods shall occur on the same day.

The Franchisee shall be responsible for determining its collection routes. The
Franchisee shall communicate to residents their collection dates and any alteration
in or to collection dates in sufficient time so as to allow residents to prepare for the
collection of Solid Waste.

The Franchisee shall have no obligation to collect Unacceptable Waste. If there is
Unacceptable Waste in the resident’s cart or at the curb for collection, the
Franchisee shall leave behind such Unacceptable Waste and a statement explaining
why such waste cannot be collected. Franchisee shall not be liable if a resident
tenders Unacceptable Waste (including, but not limited to Hazardous Waste) and
may take any action authorized by law against any resident who tenders
Unacceptable Waste to Franchisee.

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 26



3.2 Collection — Residential Recyclables

A.

The Franchisee shall collect once per month from each City Residential Unit within
the Franchise Area all Recyclable Materials deposited by the resident in 96 gallon
carts at the curb; provided, however, Franchisee shall collect Recyclable Materials
placed at locations other than the curb for those customers who are elderly and or
disabled at an alternate location. A maximum of two carts will be collected per
collection week. The Franchisee may collect residential Recyclable Materials
during the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. taking efforts to minimize the noise and
disturbance to residents. The Franchisee shall leave the resident’s recycling cart and
property in a clean and neat condition.

The Franchisee shall be responsible for determining its collection routes. The
Franchisee shall communicate to residents their collection dates and any alteration
in or to collection dates in sufficient time so as to allow residents to prepare for the
collection of Recyclable Materials.

The Franchisee shall collect the following items as recyclables.- plastic #1 and #2
(soft drink, milk jugs, water bottles, etc.), metal cans (aluminum cans, steel food
cans), and paper items (newspaper, phonebooks, junk mail, magazines, computer
paper, cereal boxes, and cardboard). All items shall be cleaned of food or liquid by
the resident. The above items maybe modified from time to time based on the
material that is accepted at the recycling outlet.

The Franchisee shall have no obligation to collect Unacceptable Waste. If there is
Unacceptable Waste in the resident’s recycling cart or at the curb for collection,
Franchisee shall leave behind such Unacceptable Waste and a statement explaining
why such waste cannot be collected. Franchisee shall not be liable if a resident
tenders Unacceptable Waste (including, but not limited to Hazardous Waste) and
may take any action authorized by law against any resident who tenders
Unacceptable Waste to Franchisee.

33 Collection - Commercial

A.

The Franchisee shall collect at least weekly (or more often if required by the
commercial entity with additional charges being applicable) from each commercial
unit within the unincorporated areas of the Franchise Area all Solid Waste
deposited by the commercial entity in containers supplied by Franchisee. The
Franchisee may collect commercial Solid Waste during the hours of 6:00 a.m. and
6:00 p.m. taking efforts to minimize the noise and disturbance to customers/clients
of the business. The Franchisee shall leave the entity’s Solid Waste container and
property in a clean and neat condition.

The Franchisee shall be responsible for determining its collection routes. The
Franchisee shall communicate to each commercial entity their collection dates and

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 27



any alteration in or to collection dates in sufficient time so as to allow residents to
prepare for the collection of Solid Waste. :

The Franchisee shall have no obligations to collect Unacceptable Waste. If a
commercial entity places Unacceptable Waste in the entity’s container, the
Franchisee shall leave behind such Unacceptable Waste. In such case, Franchisee
shall provide a statement explaining why such waste cannot be collected. It is the
responsibility of the customer to determine the waste characteristics. Franchisee
shall not be liable if customer tenders Unacceptable Waste (including, but not
limited to Hazardous Waste) and may take any action authorized by law against
any customer who tenders Unacceptable Waste to Franchisee.

Commercial entities within the unincorporated portions of the County may also
request Recyclable Material collection services from the Franchisee at prices and
on terms as may be mutually agreed to be the Franchisee and such commercial
entity.

3.4 Collection — Wastewater Treatment Plant

A.

Franchisee shall provide to the City of Franklin Wastewater Treatment Plant
containers which are suitable for loading, transporting, and unloading the sludge
cake from the Wastewater Plant’s Filter Belt Press to the landfill or other disposal
location. The containers shall be twenty cubic yard size. Further, Franchisee shall
line every container with plastic at the beginning of the term of this agreement, and
Franchisee shall replace the plastic liner for each container each time it is emptied.
Franchisee shall accept sludge cake on an “as needed basis” from the City of
Franklin Wastewater Plant and will transport the sludge cake in 20 yard containers.
Title to the sludge cake will vest in Franchisee at the moment that the cake is placed
in the Franchisee’s trucks or otherwise collected by the Franchisee or its
representative, which will be maintained at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant,
but owned by Franchisee. Franchisee warrants and represents that its method of
hauling and disposing of sludge cake is in full compliance with all local, state, and
federal laws and regulations, including but not limited to the laws and regulations
regarding the proper environmental disposal of the wastes which are the subject of
this Agreement.

Franchisee shall be responsible for all transportation of sludge cake from the
Franklin Wastewater Treatment Facility located at 1010 Blackjack Road, Franklin,
Kentucky to the landfill or other licensed and approved disposal facility.
Franchisee shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws with regard to
transporting the sludge cake. The City shall have no responsibility for or control
over the transportation of sludge cake.

Franchisee shall pick up containers at the City of Franklin Wastewater Treatment
Plant on a “call-in” basis between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:30 p.m., Monday
through Friday. Franchisee will pick up full containers only. Franchisee shall
complete pick up on calls for service received before noon on the day that the

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 28



3.5

3.6

request is made. Calls received after noon may be serviced the same day or the
following morning. This does not preclude the City and Franchisee to mutually
agree on services and/or times outside the above guidelines or during “Emergency”
situations.

Convenience Center and Recycling Drop Off

A.

Franchisee shall provide a convenience center utilizing the County property located
at 2416 Kenneth Utley Drive. County has made and will continue to make the
property available under the same terms and conditions as currently made available
to the current franchisee.

Franchisee shall provide adequate number of open top containers for the smooth
and efficient operation of the Convenience Center in order to reduce any
unnecessary delays to customer utilizing the Convenience Center.

Franchisee shall provide compartmentalized containers to collect sorted Recyclable
Material delivered to the Convenience Center by County residents.

Franchisee shall empty bulky items and recycling containers as needed to keep the
Convenience Center operating smooth and efficiently.

The Convenience Center shall be manned and open Tuesday and Friday, 8:00 am
to 4:30 pm and Saturday 8:00 am to 12:00 pm, but will be closed Sunday, Monday,
Wednesday, and Thursday.

The Convenience Center shall accept the following recycling items free of charge
(newspapers, tin and bi-metal cans, aluminum cans, plastic containers
(PET/HDPE), NCR paper, magazines and circulars (slick paper) and cardboard).

Transport

A.

The Franchisee shall transport all Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and oversized
goods it collects under this Agreement in compliance with all federal, state and
local statutes, ordinances, and regulations and in such a manner as to prevent the
blowing, leaking, and/or spreading of debris. The Franchisee shall not allow debris,
liquid or waste of any kind or content to escape from collection vehicles.

The Franchisee shall obtain all necessary federal, state, and local permits and/or
licenses to collect and transport Solid Waste. The Franchisee shall deliver to the
County and City copies of all permits required for the collection and transport of
Solid Waste and subsequent permit revisions or modifications.

Should the Franchisee elect to operate a Transfer Station or Convenience Center,
the Franchisee shall inform the County and City of the location of the facility and
its hours of operation. Should the Franchisee elect to accept oversize material at

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 29



3.7

3.8

this facility from third parties, the Franchisee shall inform the County and City of
its intent and shall charge a reasonable fee subject to approval of all Parties.

Disposal

A.

The Franchisee shall dispose of or arrange for disposal of all Solid Waste collected
under this Agreement in compliance with all federal, state, and local statutes,
ordinances, and regulations. The Franchisee shall notify the County and City of its
chosen method of disposal and provide all appropriate documentation evidencing
the disposal site’s compliance with all state, federal and local statutes, ordinances,
and regulations.

The Franchisee shall dispose of or arrange for disposal of all Recyclable Materials
collected under this Agreement in compliance with all federal, state, and local
statutes, ordinances, and regulations. The Franchisee shall provide appropriate
documentation evidencing the Material Recovery Facility’s compliance with all
state, federal and local statutes, ordinances, and regulations.

Public Education Program

A.

The Franchisee shall execute a public education program designed to inform all
Commercial and Residential Units within the Franchise Area of the following:
collection schedules, set-out collection procedures and guidelines for collecting
Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, explain and/or list any Unacceptable Waste,
and provide any other information necessary to inform each commercial and/or
Residential Unit of accepted procedures.

The public education program shall include but not be limited to direct mailings,
flyers, public service announcements, community meetings, contests, presentations
to schools and civic groups, and other related activities to educate the public about
Solid Waste issues. The County and City must review and approve all public
education materials prior to distribution to the public in their respective Franchise
Areas.

The Franchisee shall provide a customer service line with a local or toll free number
that is staffed at least eight hours per day, five days per week to respond to customer
calls and other requests for information.

Franchisee may observes the following holidays:
New Years Day

Memorial Day

July 4th

Labor Day

Thanksgiving

Christmas

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 30



If a holiday falls on a normal collection day then all routes would be collected one
day later following the holiday.

Collection ~ Schedule Example: Thanksgiving falls on Thursday.
Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday service are the same, but Thursday collections
would be collected Friday, and Friday collections would be collected on Saturday.

E. In the case of ice storms, floods, tornadoes or other natural disasters, or in the event
of the use of weapons of mass destruction, where the Franchise Area has been
designated a disaster area by local, state or federal authorities, Franchisee will
negotiate with the appropriate authority regarding the cost for cleaning up the
damage caused by such ice storms, floods, tornadoes, or other natural disasters or
use of weapons of mass destruction which exceeded Franchisee’s obligations to
collect Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials and bulky waste.

3.9  Equipment and Personnel

A. The Franchisee shall have sufficient personnel and shall have on hand at all times
and in good working order such equipment and vehicles as necessary to permit the
Franchisee to adequately and efficiently perform all services described in this
Agreement. All equipment shall be kept in good repair, appearance, and in a
sanitary and clean condition at all times. Equipment and vehicles shall be painted
uniformly with the name of the Franchisee, business telephone number and vehicle
number. All vehicles shall be numbered and a record kept of the vehicles to which
each number is assigned.

B. The Franchisee’s supervisory personnel must be available for consultation with a
designated franchise coordinator for the County and City and/or customers within
a reasonable time after notification of a request for such consultation.

C. The Franchisee’s employees shall service the public in a courteous, helpful and
impartial manner. Care shall be taken to prevent damage to a resident’s property
including, but not limited to carts, trees, shrubs, landscaping, flowers and other
plants.

D. The Franchisee’s employees shall wear a clean and presentable uniform bearing the
company and employee’s name.

E. The Franchisee shall comply with state, federal and local laws, ordinances, and
regulations relating to wages, hours and other applicable laws relating to the
employment and protection of employees, now or hereafter in effect.

3.10  County Free Services and Amnesty Days

A. The Franchisee shall accept free of charge roadside litter collected by the Simpson
County Public Works Department.

£00086301.DOC.}
P. 31



3.11

4.1

The Franchisee will provide the Simpson County Fiscal Court up to 20 tons or 60
cubic yards of free disposal per year for residents that they deem hardship cases.

Franchisee and County shall select one day in the spring of each year as Amnesty
Day. Franchisee shall accept up to ten (10) thirty cubic yard open top roll off
containers of acceptable material from County residents.

City and County Facilities

A. The Franchisee shall service the following City and County facilities located within
the Franchise Area at no charge. The City and County agree not to tender
Unacceptable Waste to Franchisee at these locations.

1. City Hall;

2. City Maintenance Department;

3. City Water Plant;

4. City Wastewater Plant (except for sewer disposal addressed in Section 3.3

herein);

5 Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission;

6 Simpson County Courthouse and Annex;

7. Simpson County Justice Center facilities;

8. Franklin-Simpson County Parks and Recreation facilities;

9. Simpson County Regional Jail and Sheriff’s office facilities;

10. Simpson County Road Department;

11. Simpson County Health Department;

12.  East Washington Street Fire Station;

13. Macedonia Road Fire Station;

14. Coroner’s Office;

15.  Franklin Police Department;

16.  Franklin-Simpson Boys and Girls Club;

17.  Goodnight House;

18. Simpson County Archives (Old Jail facility);

19. Simpson County Animal Shelter; and,

20.  County building known as the “Old Post Office” on 31-W.
SECTION 1V: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

Compliance

A. The Franchisee must perform its duties under this Agreement in compliance with
all applicable state, federal and local statutes, ordinances, and regulations.

B. The Franchisee agrees to provide to the County and City immediately upon sending

or receipt, copies of all correspondence sent to or received from state or federal
regulatory authorities and notice of all communications with said regulatory

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 32



authorities in connection with or related to services performed by the Franchisee
under this Agreement.

The Franchisee must maintain its equipment and perform the services described in
this Agreement in such a way as to avoid excessive debris, liquid or other material
being strewn or deposited along collection routes or facilities operated by the
Franchisee.

SECTION V: FEE STRUCTURE AND FRANCHISE FEES

5.1 County Fees

A.

The monthly rate for collection of residential Solid Waste authorized herein to be
billed to each participating County Residential Unit within the Franchise Area shall
be $13.28 for the service described herein. The charge shall appear on each
resident’s bill.

The monthly rate for collection of County commercial Solid Waste authorized
herein shall be the list attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by
reference. The charge shall appear on each commercial entity’s bill prepared by
the Franchisee.

The rate for items delivered to the Convenience Center authorized herein shall be
included in the list attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by
reference. The charge shall be collected at the time items are dropped off at the
Convenience Center.

The Franchisee bears all costs associated with performing the services described in
this Agreement, which include, but are not limited to, the collection, transport, and
disposal of or arranging for the disposal of residential and commercial Solid Waste
and wastewater treatment plant waste collected under this Agreement.

S City Fees

A.

The monthly rate for collection of City residential Solid Waste authorized herein to
be billed to each Residential Unit within the Franchise Area regardless of
participation shall be $12.80. Residents age 65 and older and those identified as
disabled by the City shall receive a ten percent (10%) discount. The charge shall
appear on each resident’s utility bill.

The monthly rate for collection of commercial Solid Waste authorized herein shall
be the list attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and incorporated herein by reference. The
charge shall appear on each commercial entity’s bill prepared by the Franchisee.

The rate to be charged for collection at the Franklin Wastewater Plant pursuant to
Section 3.3 of this Agreement shall be$675.00 per dumpster load based on a
fourteen (14) ton monthly weight average. If monthly weight average exceeds ten

£{00086301.DOC.}

P. 33



percent (10%) then the rate per load will be increased based on the new average
minus the old average multiplied by $41.74 per ton.

D. The monthly rate for collection of residential Recyclables Materials authorized
herein to be billed to each Residential Unit within the Franchise Area regardless of
participation, shall be $3.51 for the service described herein. Residents age 65 and
older and those identified as disabled by the City shall receive a ten percent (10%)
discount. The charge shall appear on each resident’s utility bill.

E. The Franchisee bears all costs associated with performing the services described in
this Agreement, which include, but are not limited to, the collection, transport, and
disposal of or arranging for the disposal of residential and commercial Solid Waste
and wastewater treatment plant waste collected under this Agreement.

53 Fee Adjustment Mechanism
A. County

1. Rate Increases — The Franchisee shall notify the County sixty (60) days
prior to any change in price. All fees which may be charged except
Residential fees by the Franchisee for the second and subsequent years of
the term hereof shall be increased to reflect changes in the cost of
operations, as reflected by fluctuations in the Consumer Price Index for
Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers. Expenditures Category “Water
and Sewer and Trash Collection (CPI),” published by the U.S. Department
of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. As of the first day of July of the first
year of the contract and every year thereafter (the “Rate Modification
Date”), the fee shall be increased for the ensuing yearly period beginning
July 1% immediately following the preceding June 30™ in the percentage
amount equal to 100% of the Index. For purposes of computing the
adjustment to fees charged in this paragraph, the increase shall be
determined by comparing the amount shown on the index for May 1, 2018
to that shown on May 1, 2019 and the Index on each May 1°' thereafter shall
be compared to that of the preceding May 1% and the price increased
accordingly for the period which runs from July 1% of each year to June 30
of the succeeding. The increase, if any, shall take effect on the rate
modification date. The current fees will be held firm until June 30, 2021.
Effective July 1, 2021, the Residential fees will increase by the CPI, if the
CPI1s 2% or less. If'the CPI is between 2% and 3%, then the increase will
be 2%. If the CPI is above 3% then the increase will be CPI- 1%. Effective
July 1, 2022 and for all subsequent years the fees will increase by the CPI.

2. Franchisee may petition the County for rate adjustments at reasonable times
on the basis of unusual and substantial changes in the cost of operations,
such as new or revised laws, ordinances, or regulations, or changes in

£00086301.DOC.}
P. 34



B. City

£00086301.DOC.}

disposal fees beyond our control, and for other reasons. Any petition for rate
adjustments shall be made at least 90 days prior to the date that said rate
adjustment would be implemented. The County shall have the right, as a
condition for its approval, to demand inspections by itself or by an
independent auditor of pertinent records that demonstrate the need for an
adjustment to the rates. The County is in no way obligated to change rates
even if such requests and reasons are considered reasonable. This
subsection is included herein to allow petition and resolution of such
circumstances.

Additional Carts — Franchisee will supply one cart to each participating
household. Franchisee will supply an additional cart to each house that is
requested for an additional $6.65 per month.

Franchisee at its discretion may implement a fuel surcharge if the price per
gallon for diesel fuel exceeds $4.00. Only commercial customers will be
subject to this surcharge. Surcharge Chart is attached as Exhibit 3.

The County reserves the right to request additional information from the
Franchisee to evaluate a request for a rate increase.

1. Rate Increases — The Franchisee shall notify the County sixty (60) days
prior to any change in price. All fees which may be charged except
Residential fees by the Franchisee for the second and subsequent years
of the term hereof shall be increased to reflect changes in the cost of
operations, as reflected by fluctuations in the Consumer Price Index for
Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers. Expenditures Category
“Water and Sewer and Trash Collection (CPI),” published by the U.S.
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. As of the first day of
July of the first year of the contract and every year thereafter (the “Rate
Modification Date”), the fee shall be increased for the ensuing yearly
period beginning July 1% immediately following the preceding June 30
in the percentage amount equal to 100% of the Index. For purposes of
computing the adjustment to fees charged in this paragraph, the increase
shall be determined by comparing the amount shown on the index for
May 1, 2018 to that shown on May 1, 2019 and the Index on each May
1* thereafter shall be compared to that of the preceding May 1% and the
price increased accordingly for the period which runs from July 1% of
each year to June 30* of the succeeding. The increase, if any, shall take
effect on the rate modification date. The current fees will be held firm
until June 30, 2021. Effective July 1, 2021, the Residential fees will
increase by the CPI, if the CPI is 2% or less. Ifthe CPI is between 2%
and 3%, then the increase will be 2%. If the CPI is above 3% then the

P. 35



{00086301.DOC.}

increase will be CPI- 1%. Effective July 1, 2022 and for all subsequent
years the fees will increase by the CPI.

. Recycling Outlets- The Franchisee shall notify the City one hundred

twenty (120) days prior to the rate modification date if Franchisee
intends to request any change in the recycling collection rate other than
the normal CPI increase outlined above. Request will only be made if
the Franchisee is now being charged to dispose of recyclable material,
and/or the end market location has change and new location is farther
than QRS in Nashville Tennessee. The Franchisee and the City will
work together to resolve the request that will be mutually agreeable to
both parties. The Franchisee may not request an increase in this type of
fee until after July 1, 2025.

. Additional Carts — Franchisee will supply one cart to each household.

Franchisee will supply an additional cart to each house in which itis
requested. Franchise will keep a computerize list of each resident along
with address that receives an additional cart. The Franchisee will
provide the first fifteen hundred (1500) additional carts free of charge.
However, if the quantity of additional carts exceeds fifteen hundred
(1500) the Franchisee will notify the City sixty (60) days prior to rate
modification date that there will be an additional charge.

0 to 1500 - no charge
1501 to 2000 - An additional .45 cents per month to all residential service

customers

2001 to 2500 — An additional .45 cents per month to all residential service

customers.

2501 to 3000 — An additional .40 cents per month to all residential service

customers.

3001 to 3500 — An additional .30 cents per month to all residential service

customers.

4. The City reserves the right to request additional information from the

Franchisee to evaluate a request for a rate increase.

P. 36



5.4  Franchise Fee and Billing Fees

A. County

1.

B. City

{00086301.DOC.}

Franchisee shall bill all participating County residential and all County
commercial customers within the franchise area for services. Franchisee
shall pay to the County a fee of five percent (5%) of collected gross receipts
for residential and commercial service activities under this Agreement in
the unincorporated portions of the Franchise Area, for each contract year or
portion thereof that this Agreement remains in effect (the “County
Franchise Fee”). However, in no event shall the County Franchise Fee be
less than twelve thousand ($12,000.00) dollars per year. The County
Franchise Fee shall be payable within sixty-five (65) days of the last day of
the year in which services were provided by Franchisee for residential
customers using the service. The County Franchise Fee shall be based on
gross receipts from all Solid Waste collection and disposal services for
residential and commercial customers under this Agreement for County
residential and commercials customers during the immediately preceding
year. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the balance due shall be
paid thirty (30) days after the date services are terminated. Each payment
of the County Franchise Fee shall be accompanied by a report in a form
acceptable to the County. Franchisee shall provide additional
documentation upon request.

Franchisee shall bill residential customers quarterly in advance and
commercial customers monthly in advance.

The Franchisee shall identify each customer who fails to make the required
payments for Solid Waste collections, and the County shall fully cooperate
with Franchisee in any delinquent payment collection efforts. Franchisee
shall not be required to provide Solid Waste and / or Recycling collection
service to any customer who is delinquent in payments for service.

The Franchisee hereby agrees to bear the cost of an annual audit of its
records regarding the remitting of the franchise fee if the County, in its
reasonable discretion, deems an audit necessary.

Each month;, the City shall withhold ten percent (10%) of the gross receipts
received by the City from utility bill payments attributable to operations
conducted by the Franchisee pertaining to its operations by and through this
Agreement within the incorporated limits of the City which are included
inthe Franchise Area, including the operation of the transfer facility should
the Franchisee elect to operate a transfer facility (the “City Residential
Franchise Fee”). In addition, the City shall withhold three percent (3%) of
the gross receipts received by Franchisee attributable to its operations in the

P. 37



{00086301.DOC.}

City as a collection fee for the City performing residential billing services
(the “City Collection Fee”).

The City shall remit the “Net Amount” collected through utility bill
payments attributable to Solid Waste and Recyclables Materials collection
to the Franchisee within sixty-five (65) days of the last day of the month in
which services were provided by Franchisee. “Net Amount” shall mean the
amount billed to the customer by the City less the City Residential Franchise
Fee, the City Collection Fee, and any and all bad debts, write-offs or
accounts not paid by customers. The City shall identify each customer who
fails to make the required payments for Solid Waste collections and shall
fully cooperate with Franchisee in any delinquent payment collection
efforts. Franchisee shall not be required to provide Solid Waste and / or
recycling collection service to any customer who is delinquent in payments
for service.

The Franchisee hereby agrees to bear the cost of an annual audit of its
records regarding the City Franchise Fee if the City, in its discretion, deems
an audit necessary.

Each month, the Franchisee shall bill all commercial and industrial
customers other than Commercial hand pickup customers, within the
franchise area for services. Franchisee shall pay to the City a fee of ten
percent (10%) of collected gross receipts for commercial and industrial
service activities under this Agreement in the incorporated portions of the
Franchise Area, for each contract year or portion thereof that this
Agreement remains in effect (the “City Commercial Franchise Fee”). The
City Commercial Franchise Fee shall be payable within sixty-five (65) days
of the last day of the month in which services were provided by Franchisee
for commercial and industrial customers using the service. The City
Commercial Fee shall be based on gross receipts from all Solid Waste
collection and disposal services for commercial and industrial customers
under this Agreement in the incorporated portions of the Franchise Area
during the immediately preceding month. In the event this Agreement is
terminated, the balance due shall be paid thirty (30) days after the date
services are terminated. Each payment of the City Commercial Franchise
Fee shall be accompanied by a report in a form reasonably acceptable to the
City, certified by the City Manager, providing the number of commercial
customers serviced and the revenues received therefrom. Franchisee shall
provide additional documentation upon request.

The Franchisee shall identify each commercial or industrial customer who
fails to make the required payments for Solid Waste collections and shall
fully cooperate with City in any delinquent payment collection efforts.
Franchisee shall not be required to provide Solid Waste and / or recycling
collection service to any customer who is delinquent in payments for
service.

P. 38



6.1

6.2

6. The Franchisee hereby agrees to bear the cost of an annual audit of its
records regarding the remitting of the franchise fee if the City, in its
discretion, deems an audit necessary.

SECTION VI: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Reports to County and City

A.

The Franchisee shall maintain records and report quarterly to the County and City
the volume and source of all commercial, wastewater treatment plant, residential
Solid Waste, recyclables, and oversized goods collected by the Franchisee under
this Agreement during the previous month and the ultimate disposal location of the
waste collected.

The Franchisee shall maintain records and report quarterly to the County and City
on all public education activities undertaken by the Franchisee.

The County and City shall have the authority to request the Franchisee to report to
the County and City Commission on any aspect of services provided under this
Agreement.

The Franchisee shall retain all records required to be maintained under this
Agreement for five (5) years following the expiration of this Agreement.

The Franchisee shall maintain a summary of customer service calls and the
Franchisee’s response.

Right of Inspection/Audit

A.

Upon reasonable notice, the County and City reserve the right to inspect the
Franchisee’s operations at any time in such a way as to not unreasonably interfere
with the Franchisee’s operations. The Franchisee hereby grants the County and
City a right-of-entry as necessary to exercise this right, as may be necessary for the
County or City to verify compliance with this Agreement upon reasonable notice
within business hours.

The County and City reserve the right to require the Franchisee’s records relating
to the Franchisee’s operations under this Agreement to be audited at any time. The
Franchisee shall bear the cost of any audit required by the County or City. Should
the audit reveal inconsistencies or any other problems, the Franchisee must provide
the County or City with a written explanation including the Franchisee’s plans to
remedy any problem identified.

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 39



7.1

SECTION VII: REQUIRED INSURANCE AND BONDING

Insurance

A.

General Liability Insurance — The Franchisee shall maintain insurance from
companies approved by the County and City, but such approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. Said insurance coverage must
protect the County, City, and Franchisee and their respective officials, officers,
agents, employees and representatives from and against any and all claims, losses,
damages, costs and expenses including costs of defense and reasonable attorneys’
fees for injury or damage to persons or property, both real and personal, caused by
the Franchisee’s operations pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The
Franchisee bears all responsibility for all costs associated with this coverage. The
Franchisee shall maintain the following minimum coverages:

Bodily Injury Per Person $ 2 Million
Bodily Injury Per Occurrence $ 2 Million
Property Damage Per Occurrence  $ 2 Million
Property Damage Aggregate $ 2 Million

Automobile Insurance — The Franchisee shall maintain sufficient automobile
insurance from companies approved by the County and City, but such approval
shall not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, in order to protect
the County, City, and Franchisee and their respective officials, officers, agents,
employees and representatives from and against any and all claims, losses,
damages, costs and expenses, including cost of defense and reasonable attorneys’
fees for injury or damage to persons or property, both real and personal caused by
the operation of the Franchisee’s vehicles pursuant to this Agreement. The
Franchisee bears all responsibility for all costs associated with this coverage. The
Franchisee shall maintain the following minimum policy limits:

Bodily Injury Per person $ 2 Million
Bodily Injury Per Occurrence $ 2 Million
Property Damage Per Occurrence  $ 2 Million
Property Damage Aggregate $ 2 Million

Worker’s Compensation Insurance — The Franchisee shall maintain worker’s
compensation insurance as required by the laws of the Commonwealth of
Kentucky. The Franchisee bears all responsibility for all costs associated with this
coverage.

Builder’s Risk — If the Franchisee intends to construct or substantially repair any
facilities associated with performing services under this Agreement, the Franchisee
must carry builder’s risk coverage, with the limits of insurance equal to 100% of
the completed value of the project. The coverage shall include the transport and

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 40



7.2

installation of all machinery and/or equipment installed in the facility, and the
Franchisee bears all responsibility for all costs associated with this coverage.

County and City as Additional Insured/Loss Payee — All insurance required under
the terms of the Agreement shall name the County and City as additional insureds.

Performance Bond

A.

Upon the effective date of the Agreement, the Franchisee shall furnish proof of the
posting of a faithful performance bond running to the County and City with good
and sufficient surety approved by the County and City, but such approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. The performance bond level
shall equal operating costs of the Franchisee for a 120-day period.

The bond shall be conditioned that the Franchisee shall observe, fulfill and perform
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and in the case of any breach of
condition of the bond, the amount thereof shall be recoverable from principle and
surety, jointly and severally, for all damages resulting from the failure of Franchisee
to observe and perform its obligations under this Agreement. The bond shall be
maintained by the Franchisee throughout the term of this Agreement.

The County and City hereby reserve the power to require the Franchisee to increase
the amount of the performance bond, in its reasonable discretion, at any time upon
using commercially reasonably efforts if making a determination that the amount
of the bond is insufficient.

The Franchisee shall give 30 days notice to the County and City of any change or
alternation on the performance bond.

SECTION VIII: OWNERSHIP OF COLLECTED MATERIALS

8.1

Ownership of Materials

Title or ownership of all Solid Waste, oversized goods placed in a container for collection
passes to the Franchisee at the point the item is removed from the container and placed in
the Franchisee’s vehicle, unless such waste is Unacceptable Waste. Title to Unacceptable
Waste shall remain with the customer even if such Unacceptable Waste is inadvertently
collected by Franchisee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all monetary proceeds or losses
from the sale of recycled materials shall be the property of Franchisee.

SECTION IX: INDEMNIFICATION, DUTY TO DEFEND, RELEASE &

9.1

WAIVER

The Franchisee hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and City, their
respective officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives (“Indemnified
Parties”) for all claims, losses, damages, penalties, costs and expenses including, but not

£00086301.DOC.}

P. 41



9.2

9.3

9.4

limited to, costs of defense and reasonable attorneys’ fees (“claims”) to the extent resulting
from the Franchisee’s acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement including, but
not limited to, a breach of this Agreement except to the extent caused by the negligence,
willful misconduct, or breach of this Agreement by the County or City. Such claims shall
include but not be limited to damages arising out of liability, suits, claims, demands,
regulatory enforcement actions, attorney’s fees, costs of defense, and other damages arising
out of the collection, transport, processing and disposal of residential Solid Waste and
collection of oversized goods under the terms of this Agreement. The Franchisee’s
obligations shall continue beyond the term of this Agreement should losses, damages, costs
and expenses be incurred after the termination of this Agreement.

If a claim is asserted or a lawsuit is filed against the County or City, either independently
or jointly with the Franchisee which relate to the Franchisee’s activities under the terms of
this Agreement, the Franchisee shall, upon notice to it, defend the Indemnified Parties
against the action, except to the extent that it is based upon the negligence, willful
misconduct, or breach of this Agreement by the Indemnified Parties. This duty to defend
shall continue beyond the term of this Agreement should a claim or lawsuit be asserted or
continue beyond the term of this Agreement. In the event of a final judgment being
obtained against an Indemnified Party either independently or jointly with the Franchisee,
the Franchisee shall pay said judgment and all costs, including costs of defense and
reasonable attorneys’ fees and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless therefrom, except to
the extent caused by the negligence, willful misconduct, or breach of this Agreement by
the Indemnified Parties.

The County or City shall indemnify and hold Franchisee harmless from all liability to the
extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties, or the
breach of this Agreement by the County or City.

Should any court or regulatory agency, state or federal, ever seek to establish liability
against an Indemnified Party for the cost of a environmental clean up, recovery, or other
corrective action, or criminal or civil penalty provided by applicable law in connection with
or related to Franchisee’s duties under this Agreement solely related to Solid Waste and/or
Recyclable Materials (and specifically excluding any Unacceptable Waste), the Franchisee
hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties for any and
all fines, losses, costs or expenses, including, but not limited to costs of defense and
reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of
the Franchisee, or breach of this Agreement by Franchisee, or the failure of Franchisee to
comply with all applicable governmental laws and regulations.

SECTION X: TERM, RENEWAL, MODIFICATIONS AND TRANSFERS

10.1

Renewal

This Agreement shall be effective , 2019 and terminate June 30, 2025.
Upon mutual agreement of all parties, this Agreement may be renewed for two (2)
additional five (5) year term upon mutual agreement of both parties.

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 42



10.2

10.3

10.4

Modification

A.

Either party may seek a modification of this Agreement; however, no modification
shall be effective unless it is signed by authorized representatives of the County or
City, or both, as applicable, and Franchisee. '

All requests for modifications shall be made in writing to each party’s designated
representative.

The Franchisee shall furnish upon the County’s or City’s request information,
documents, data and other applicable items pertaining to its request.

Transfers

A.

The Franchisee shall not assign, transfer, or convey this Agreement, or its rights,
duties or obligations hereunder, without prior written consent of the County and
City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. Any
attempt to assign, transfer, or convey any part of this Agreement without the
approval of the County and City shall render this Agreement voidable.

Any change in ownership of the Franchisee which differs significantly from that
described by the Franchisee in its proposal shall be considered an assignment,
transfer or conveyance of this Agreement requiring approval from the County and
City.

The Franchisee may not subcontract with a separate entity to perform any service
encompassed by this Agreement without the approval of the County and City. Any
attempt to subcontract with a separate entity to perform service encompassed by
this Agreement without County or City approval shall render this Agreement
voidable.

When seeking the County’s and City’s approval for a transfer, assignment or
conveyance of this Agreement or approval of a subcontract, the Franchisee must
provide, upon the County’s and City’s request, information relating to the
contemplated transfer, assignment, conveyance or subcontract.

Termination

A.

The County and City may terminate this Agreement if the Franchisee is in breach
of this Agreement by giving the Franchisee notice, provided that Franchisee has
been given notice and an opportunity to cure pursuant to Section 12.2 of this
Agreement.

The Franchisee may terminate this Agreement if the County or City is in breach of
this Agreement by giving the County and City notice, provided that County or City

£00086301.DOC.}

P. 43



11.1

12.1

12.2

12.3

has been given notice and an opportunity to cure pursuant to Section 12.2 of this
Agreement

SECTION XI: COSTS

Costs

The County and City reserve the right to charge the Franchisee for any cost incidental to
the renewing, transferring, modifying and enforcing the terms of this Agreement including,
but not limited to, consultant fees and reasonable attorneys’ fees, Franchisee shall
reimburse the County’s and City’s consultant costs if and to the extent that they are
reasonably necessary for the County and City to retain a third party consultant to evaluate
Franchisee’s performance under this Agreement.

SECTION XII: REMEDIES
Breach
A. As used in this Agreement, “breach” shall mean:
1. a failure to perform or observe any term, provision or requirement of this
Agreement;
2. a failure to comply with any state, federal or local permit or license under
which the Franchisee operates or performs services under this Agreement;
3. a failure to comply with any state or federal statute or regulation or any local
ordinances;
S. the making of an untrue representation;
6. the failure to pay franchise fees; or
7. the occurrence of any act of insolvency by the Franchisee, County, or City,
as the case may be.
Cure

In the event of a breach, the non-breaching party shall give the breaching party notice of
the breach, and a reasonable opportunity to cure (which shall be no less than thirty (30)
days).

Remedies

£00086301.DOC.}

P. 44



In the event of a breach, the non-breaching party shall have the right to enforce the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, implementing the following remedies at
the non-breaching party’s option, all such remedies being cumulative.

The remedies available to the non-breaching party include:

1. termination of the Franchise and this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.4
of this Agreement;

2. closure of all convenience centers, transfer stations or other similar facilities
operated in the County and City by the Franchisee under this Agreement
and the cessation of all activities in the County and City by the Franchisee
relating to this Agreement;

3. the right to bring any legal proceeding in the nature of injunction, specific
performance or other equitable remedy. Each party hereby acknowledges
that any substantial and continuing breach of this Agreement will cause
irreparable harm to the non-breaching party and that damages at law are an
inadequate remedy for such a breach of this Agreement;

4. any other remedy provided by this Agreement; and
5. any other remedy allowed by applicable law.

Remedies Cumulative. Each right, power and remedy provided in this Agreement
or now or hereafter existed at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise shall be
cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other such right, power
or remedy. The exercise or the beginning of the exercise or the forbearance of the
exercise by the non-breaching party of any one or more of such rights, powers or
remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by the non-breaching
party of any or all such rights, powers or remedies.

Failure to insist upon strict performance of any covenant, obligation, term or
requirement of this Agreement shall not be a waiver of a right to demand strict
performance in the future.

SECTION XIII: INTERPRETATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF THIS

13.1

AGREEMENT

Complete Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties
hereto and replaces, cancels and supersedes any prior agreements and understandings
relating to the subject mater hereof. The Franchisee, County, and City agree and warrant
that there is no agreement, representation or other inducement for the execution of this
Agreement other than the consideration recited herein.

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 45



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

Governing Law and Venue

A. This Agreement is executed in the Commonwealth of Kentucky and all matters
pertaining to the validity, construction, interpretation and effect of this Agreement
shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

B. The venue shall be Simpson County, Kentucky.
Construction

Should any provision of this Agreement require interpretation or construction, it is agreed
by the parties hereto that a court, administrative body or other entity interpreting or
construing this Agreement shall not apply a presumption that the provisions hereof shall
be more strictly construed against one party than another by reason of the rule of
construction that a document is to be more strictly construed against the party who itself or
through its agent prepared the same. The headings or sections and subsections are for
convenience only and shall not affect or control the meaning or construction of any of the
provisions of this Agreement.

Notices

A. All notices, requests, demands or other communications required under this
Agreement shall be made in writing and shall be served by hand delivery or by
placing such in the United States Mail, certified mail, return receipt requested and
bearing adequate postage. Each notice shall be effective upon receipt. Rejection,
refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed address or status
shall be deemed to be receipt of the notice sent.

B. The Franchisee shall notify the County Judge Executive and City Manager of any
change of address or change of personnel to whom all notices, requests, demands
or other communications should be directed.

Severability

In the event that any term, provision, or covenant hereunder shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall
remain valid and enforceable by any party and the invalid or unenforceable covenant shall
automatically be deemed modified and amended to provide for the maximum rights
available under applicable law to the party who is the beneficiary of the covenant in
question.

Third Parties

{00086301.DOC.}

P. 46



Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer any right or remedies
on any person other than the parties expressly named herein and their respective permanent
successors, assigns and legal representatives.

13.7  Authority of Parties
The parties expressly represent and warrant that the individuals who have executed this

Agreement are authorized to sign on behalf of such entities for the purpose of duly binding
such entities to this Agreement.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

{00086301.DOC.}
P. 47



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the County and City has caused this Agreement to be executed for and on
its behalf by its duly authorized Mayor and attested by the County Clerk, and Scott Waste Services, L.L.C.
has caused this instrument to be executed by its duly authorized representative.

COUNTY OF SIMPSON, KENTUCKY

Mason Barnes, Judge Executive

Attested by:

Pam Rohrs, Fiscal Court Clerk

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

Larry Dixon, Mayor

Attested by:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

SCOTT WASTE SERICES, LLC

By:
WASTE CONNECTIONS US, INC, its
Manager

STATE OF )
)
COUNTY OF )
Subscribed and sworn to before me by of Scott Waste Services, L.L.C. to be his
free and voluntary act and deed on this the day of April, 2019.
Notary Public

{00086301.DOC.}

My commission expires:



6t 'd

EXHIBIT 1

SCOTT WASTE SERVICES, LLC.

SIMPSON COUNTY RATES
Rates effective July 1, 2019

ki
CONTAINER PICKUP PICKUP PICKUP PICKUP PICKUP Extra
SIZE 1 x weekly 2 X weekly 3 X weekly 4 X weekly 5 X weekly Empty
Commercial/96 Gallon $21.51 $43.02 n/a n/a n/a $7.00
2 cu yard $38.45 $76.90 $115.35 $153.80 $192.25 2$0.00
3 cuyard $57.68 $115.35 $173.03 $230.70 $288.38 2$5.00
4 cu yard $76.90 $153.80 $230.70 $307.60 $384.50 3$0.00
6 cu yard $115.35 $230.70 $346.05 $461.40 $576.76 4$0.00
8 cu yard $153.80 $307.60 $461.40 $615.21 $769.01 5$0.00
RESIDENTIAL Monthly
CHARGES: Quarterly Advanced
Simpson County 39.$85
Simpson 2nd Cart 6$i65
Simpson County $ 12.88

{00086301.DOC.}




d

0§

SCOTT WASTE SERVICES, LLC.

CITY OF FRANKLIN RATES

EXHIBIT 2

COMMERCIAL CHARGES:
Jokk
CONTAINER PICKUP PICKUP PICKUP PICKUP PICKUP Extra
SIZE 1 x weekly 2 X weekly 3 X weekly 4 X weekly 5 X weekly Empty
Commercial/96 Gallon $22.83 $45.66 $68.49 $91.32 $114.14 $7.00
2 cuyard $30.66 $61.31 $91.97 $122.63 $153.28 $15.00
4 cu yard $61.31 $122.63 $183.94 $245.25 $306.56 $30.00
6 cu yard $91.97 $183.94 $275.91 $367.88 $459.85 $45.00
8 cu yard $122.63 $245.25 $367.88 $490.50 $613.13 $60.00
RESIDENTIAL CHARGES: Monthly
Residential Rate 16.31
Senior Citizen Rate 14.70

City of Franklin Wastewater Plant - Sludge Removal:
$675.00 per dumpster load based on a fourteen (14) ton monthly weight average.

Note: If monthly weight average exceeds ten percent (10%) of the 14 ton limit referenced above, then the rate per load will be increased based
on the new average minus the old average multiplied by $41.74 per ton.

{00086301.DOC.}




£unoy) - 3rey)) ISIBYIING [Ong
¢ LI9IHXH

1" D0A’'10£98000}

P. 51




ORDINANCE NO. 2019-017
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN RELATING TO AN EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISEE
TO COLLECT, TRANSPORT AND DISPOSE
OF COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE
WITHIN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN AND
SIMPSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY

WHEREAS, on or about September 4, 2013, the City and Franchisee entered into that
certain Exclusive Commercial and Residential Franchise Agreement, as subsequently modified,
amended, and/or extended (the “Original City Agreement”), for the collection, transportation,
and disposal of all commercial and residential Solid Waste, wastewater treatment plant waste,
and oversized goods within the Franklin Franchise Area;

WHEREAS, on br about October 1, 2016, the City and Franchisee amended that certain

Exclusive Commercial and Residential Franchise Agreement (the “First Amendment to the City

Agreement”);

WHEREAS, on or about June 16, 2015, the County And Franchisee entered into that
certain Exclusive Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Franchise Agreement (the “Original
County Agreement”), for the collection, transportation, and disposal of all resiciential,
commercial and industrial Solid Waste, wastewater treatment plant waste, and oversized goods

within the Franklin and Simpson County Franchise Area; and

WHEREAS, the County and City wish to combine their respective agreements with
Franchisee and to extend the term thereof, adjust the rates thereunder, and to otherwise modify
the Original City Agreement, as amended, and the Original County Agreement as provided for in

the attached Agreement.

P. 52



WHEREAS, City and County staffs recommended that the City Commission and Fiscal
Court issue an exclusive franchise to collect, transport and dispose of commercial and residential
solid waste within the City of Franklin and Simpson County because multiple franchisees would
increase large truck traffic in the City and County leading to increased wear and tear on the
roadways and an increase in potential traffic hazards caused by the need for collection vehicles
to stop frequently in the roadway during collection;

WHEREAS, City and County staffs recommended that the City Commission and Fiscal
Court issue an exclusive franchise to collect, transport and dispose of residential, commercial
and Wastewater Treatment Plant solid waste within the City and County because of the need to
maintain uniformity and minimize confusion of collection times that would be caused by
multiple franchisees servicing residents, and the synergies and cost savings associated with
having one franchisee to perform the services for both the City and County.

WHEREAS, the Franklin City Commission and Simpson Fiscal Court, by and through
this Ordinance, adopt the recommendations of City and County staffs and agree to extend the
existing franchise to Scott to collect, transport and dispose of the Wastewater Treatment Plant
cake sludge, and the commercial and residential solid waste within the City of Franklin and
Simpson County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of
Franklin, Kentucky and the Fiscal Court of the County of Simpson, Kentucky that the attached
Simpson County and City of Franklin Exclusive Commercial and Residential Amended and
Restated Franchise Agreement which is incorporated herein by reference be approved and that

the Mayor and County Judge Executive be authorized to execute said agreement on behalf of the

P. 53



City of Franklin and Simpson County, Kentucky, respectively.

The City and County shall have the authority to bring an action against any party who
violates the exclusive franchise which is granted pursuant to the Agreement, to enjoin such party
from such Viol_ation, impose a fine of $1,000 per day of violation, obtain damages and obtain
other relief that may be allowed pursuant to applicable law from such party.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall
be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holdings shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions of Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such

conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on
, on motion made by and
seconded by , the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after

full discussion, by the following vote:

JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR



APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 55



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and City Commissioners
FROM: Code Enforcement Officer Kevin Allen
DATE: July 18,2019

SUBJECT: City of Franklin Parking Ordinance

Our current parking ordinance is dated and is in need of improvement and expansion to better serve
the needs and growth of the City of Franklin. I receive numerous complaints for parking violations
for which we have no current remedy to correct or enforce.

The purpose of this ordinance shall be to promote the public health, safety, and the general welfare
of the City, and Citizens, of Franklin.

Please review the recommended changes outlined here and I will look forward to your feedback at
the City Commission Meeting on Monday. The Parking Ordinance includes the following:

No vehicle may be parked continuously at one location on any City Street, Roadway or designated
parking space or parking lot for more than 24 hours. Exception: Downtown Historical District
Residents.

No parking that interferes with trash receptacle or dumpster access or removal.
No parking within 12 feet of a driveway or across from a driveway.

No parking within 10 feet of a fire hydrant

No parking in or within 30 feet of an intersection.

No Parking on a residential street unless parking in a driveway is not practicable.

No parking within 12 feet of a mailbox, except at night or days when mail is not delivered. You
will be allowed to park in front of your own mailbox.

No parking on a curve if it obstructs the regular flow of traffic or disrupts the sight picture along the
roadway.

No parking on the roadside of any vehicle stopped or parked (double parking).

All parking must be within 12 inches of the edge of the pavement or curb.

P. 56



It shall be unlawful to park a vehicle in a front yard, a side yard, or in a rear yard.

EXCEPTION: Parking in a front yard, side yard, or rear yard shall be allowed for the purpose of
unloading a vehicle, washing a vehicle or some other similar purpose. The vehicle, however, must
be removed once the task is completed.

It shall be unlawful to park a vehicle over any part of the City sidewalk or curb that is parallel to the
City Street or right of way, including the part of the sidewalk that is part of a driveway.

No parking in such a manner that obstructs the free use of the street and an unobstructed width of 12
feet must be left for the free passage of other vehicles.

No parking on the opposite side of the street (left wheels to curb is prohibited).
No parking on/in any cul-de-sac.

No inoperative or unlicensed motor vehicles shall be parked on City Streets or parking lots or will
be subject to tow immediately.

Parking is prohibited in alleys, except for the purpose of actively loading or unloading goods or
passengers.

Parking of heavy-duty commercial vehicles is prohibited in residential areas unless the vehicle is
loading or unloading goods or has a service call in the immediate area.

Overall vehicle length restriction for diagonal City parking spaces shall NOT exceed twenty (20)
feet as to not hinder normal flow of vehicle traffic.

Proposed Action: I propose and request sponsorship to the expanded City parking ordinance
to better serve and define the needs of the City of Franklin as we continue to grow and move
forward.

P. 57



UTILITIES

P.

58



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners

FROM: Trent Coffee

DATE: July 22,2019

SUBJECT: City of Franklin Wastewater Treatment Plant Aeration Basin Rehab

The wastewater treatment plant's aeration basin #2 has been in service since 1985. The C-Channels, headers and drop
pipes have also been in service since then. Over the years, diffusers have been replaced, but not the C-Channels, headers
and drop pipes. This equipment provides air to the aeration basin, so that the biological treatment can occur. This
equipment is old, rusted, and in some places the diffusers cannot be attached. With the aeration basin drained, the C-
channel, headers, drop pipes, and new diffusers need to be replaced. With this rehab, the wastewater treatment plant will
be able to treat the wastewater more efficient and get a better-quality effluent. Schreiber is sole provider of this
equipment. We will also need to rent a crane. The total cost of the Aeration Basin #2 rehab will be $85,000.00. This
includes rehab material and crane rental.

Schreiber: Price Quote — 72,356.00 + Freight

21-hole double arm headers

21-hole single arm headers
Schreiberflex diffusers tubes
Schreiberflex connectors

Galvanized drop pips with SS Cables

Crane Rental: $11,500

REQUESTED ACTION: Motion and second to authorize the Purchase of rehab materials from Schreiber for the
amount of $72,356.00 + Freight and the rental of a crane for the amount of $11,500.00 for Wastewater Treatment
Plant Aeration Basin Rehab.

P. 59



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners

FROM: Public Works Director, Chris Klotter

DATE: July 17,2019

SUBJECT: Transfer of Michael Ranburger and Trent Coffee

I would like to recommend the transfer of Michael Ranburger to the Maintenance Technician
position. With additional lift stations being added to the collection system, along with a major
electrical upgrade project at the Wastewater Plant this position will fit Michael’s skill set
perfectly. With this transfer, I would also like to recommend the transfer of the Collections
Superintendent duties to Trent Coffee. Trent is currently our Wastewater Treatment
Superintendent which ties directly into the Wastewater Collections department operations. A
job descriptions of the Maintenance Technician position and the Wastewater Superintendent
position are attached for your review.

Thank you for your consideration.

REQUESTED ACTION: Motion and second to authorize the transfer of Michael Ranburger
to the Maintenance Technician position and to traunsfer the duties of the Collections
Superintendent position to Trent Coffee.

P. 60



CITY OF FRANKLIN
JOB DESCRIPTION

Department: Wastewater Collections
Working Title: Maintenance Technician

Characteristics of Class:

Responsible to the Public Works Director for performing a variety of duties related to the maintenance of equipment
in the wastewater collection system and wastewater treatment plant

Examples of Duties:

Oversee and participate in the maintenance of lift station and wastewater plant equipment

Inspect equipment on a regular basis to ensure proper operation

Preventive and Predictive maintenance of all components of the lift stations

Assist with video inspection of collection system

Maintain and monitor SCADA systems for lift stations and wastewater plant

Electrical troubleshooting and maintenance of all lift stations and wastewater plant

Review, create, and update Standard Operating Procedures for operation and maintenance of lift stations
Coordinate repairs with Scheduler and other wastewater staff

Perform related duties as assigned by Public Works Director or City Manager

® o o o o o ¢ o O

Position Qualifications:

Training and Experience

High School Degree or GED equivalent
Minimum of five years of related experience
Wastewater or Collections Certification
Valid Driver’s license

Special Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities

¢ Knowledge of wastewater treatment and wastewater collections principles
e Knowledge of electrical and controls principles

*  Ability to work outside of regularly scheduled hours in case of emergency
e Ability to work independently or with co-workers

P. 61



CITY OF FRANKLIN
JOB DESCRIPTION

Department: Wastewater
Working Title: Wastewater Superintendent

Characteristics of Class:

Responsible to the Public Works Director for performing a variety of duties related to the planning and supervision
of the operations of the wastewater treatment plant and collection system. Supervises wastewater plant operators,
laboratory, collections, and industrial pretreatment personnel.

Examples of Duties:

Plans, schedules, and directs the operation of the wastewater treatment plant and collection system
Reviews, creates, and updates Standard Operating Procedures for the plant and collections

Insures compliance with State and Federal regulations including the KPDES Permit

Performs written evaluations of personnel

Prepares reports for appropriate Federal and State agencies

Oversees collection and analysis of wastewater samples and reviews results for compliance
Prepares and monitors budget for plant and collections

Provides input to planning design and construction of wastewater infrastructure facilities

Insures completion of inspection of new construction infrastructure

*  Performs related duties as assigned by Public Works Director or City Manager

Position Qualifications:

Training and Experience

Bachelor of Science degree in chemistry or related field
Minimum of ten years of related experience

Class III or higher Wastewater Operator’s license

Valid Driver’s license

‘Special Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities

e Thorough knowledge of the processes involved in the treatment of wastewater

Knowledge of the regulations governing the operation of wastewater treatment plants and collection
systems

Knowledge of chemical analysis and laboratory equipment

Ability to plan, supervise, schedule and direct the work of plant and collections operators

Ability to keep accurate records and prepare clear and concise reports

Ability to work outside of regularly scheduled hours in case of emergency

Ability to work independently or with co-workers

P. 62



ORDINANCES

P. 63



Sponsors: _Commissioner Powell
Commissioner Williams

Second Reading:  _July 22, 2019

Publication Date: ~ August 1, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 016

AN ORDINANCE REZONING 409 HUDSPETH AVENUE FROM I-1 (LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL) TO R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY); THE VACANT LOT LOCATED ON 403
BRICK STREET FROM I-1 (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL) TO R-2 (SINGLE FAMILY AND

TWO FAMILY); AND THE 2.50 ACRE VACANT LOT LOCATED ON MORRIS
STREET AND HUDSPETH AVENUE FROM I-1 (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL) TO R-1S
(SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL)

WHEREAS, Wilburn Jackson, Trustee of the Nancy B. Jackson and Wilburn A.
Jackson Trust, filed a petition to rezone three different parcels of land known as 409 Hudspeth
Avenue, 403 Brick Street and a 2.50 acre vacant lot located on Morris Street and Hudspeth
Avenue; and

WHEREAS, Wilburn Jackson, Trustee of the Nancy B. Jackson and Wilburn A.
Jackson Trust desires to rezone 409 Hudspeth Avenue from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-1
(Single Family) to make the property more productive for the community, and this change is
appropriate and consistent with the use of this property and surrounding properties; and

WHEREAS, Wilburn Jackson, Trustee of the Nancy B. Jackson and Wilburn A.
Jackson Trust desires to rezone 403 Brick Street from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-2 (Single
Family and Two Family) to make the property more productive for the community, and this
change is appropriate and consistent with the use of this property and surrounding properties;
and

WHEREAS, Wilburn Jackson, Trustee of the Nancy B. Jackson and Wilburn A.
Jackson Trust desires to rezone the 2.50 acre vacant lot located on Morris Street and Hudspeth
Avenue from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-1S (Single Family Residential) to make the property
more productive for the community, and this change is appropriate and consistent with the use
of this property and surrounding properties; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 9, 2019, after due public notice, in the
manner provided by law; and

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission recommended the granting of said
zone changes as they are in agreement with the community’s comprehensive plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the City
of Franklin, Kentucky as follows:

1. 409 Hudspeth Avenue is granted a zone change from I-1 (Light Industrial) to
R-1 (Single Family). A copy of the property description is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

P. 64



2. 403 Brick Street is granted a zone change from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-2
(Single Family and Two Family). A copy of the property description is attached hereto as
Exhibit 2.

3. A 2.50 acre vacant tract of land located on Morris Street and Hudspeth Avenue
is granted a zone change from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-1S (Single Family Residential). A
copy of the property description is attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for
any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holdings
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed.

July 8, 2019 FIRST READING
July 22,2019 SECOND READING
At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on July
22, 2019, on motion made by Commissioner and seconded by
Commissioner the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full

discussion, by the following vote:
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
JAMIE POWELL
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART
HERBERT WILLIAMS

APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor
ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 65



JACKSON RE-ZONING

I-1 to R-1

409 Hudspeth Ave.; PVA Map # 014-00-12-006.00

Certain real property situated in Franklin, Simpson County, Kentucky, in the New Town Addition
to the City of Franklin, and more particularly described as follows:

First Tract: A certain house and lot of land lying and being in Franklin, Simpson
County, Kentucky, in New Town and bounded thus:

Beginning at Marth Hudspeth’s corner, the southwést corner, running thence west
with a street or alley 67 [eet to a stake, corner to Lot No. 2; thence north to the line
of Jess Bradley; thence about east 67 feet to Hudspeth’s corner, now Phillips; thence

south to the beginning.

Second Tract: Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot No. 1, running thence west
along said street or alley 67%: feet to a Matilda Hudspeth’s corner; thence north 106
feet; thence east 67V feet to a stake, corner to Lot No. 1; thence south 105 feet to the

beginning.

Being a part of the same property conveyed to Nancy B. Jackson and Wilburn A,
Jackson, trustees of the Wilburn A. Jackson and Nancy B. Jackson Trust by Nancy
Bailey Jackson and spouse, Wilburn A. Jackson by deed dated December 23, 2005,
of record in Deed Book 262, Page 272, Simpson County Clerl’s Office.

EXHIBIT 1

P. 66



JACKSON RE-ZONING

[-1 to R-2

403 Brick Street: PVA Map # 014-00-12-004.00

A certain tract of land lying in Franklin, Simpson County, Kentucky and beginning
at S. Browns corner now W. Drapers corner, north with 30 foot street 105 feet or
thereabout; thetice east 266 feet; thence south 105 feet to the beginning, being a part
of Lot No. 5 in Mrs. Nancy Suddath’s division of lots of her lands.

Being the same property conveyed to Nancy B. Jackson and Wilburn A. Jackson,
Trustees of the Wilbuin A. Jackson and Nancy B. Jackson Trust by Cicely Ellis,
unmarried by deed dated August 11, 2008, of record in Deed Book 278, Page 265,
Simpson County Clerk’s Office. Nancy B, Jackson died and Wilburn A. Jackson
now serves as sole trustee of the trust.

EXHIBIT 2

P. 67



JACKSON RE-ZONING

I-1 toRI-S

Morris Street and Hudspeth Ave. Lot: PVA Map # 014-00-12-005.00

A certain tract of land lying in the New Town Addition to the City of Franklin described as follows:

Bounded on the west by lands of Ollie Gamble and Bradley, bounded on the north
by Breckenridge Street; bounded on the east by a street or alley between this property
and the property of Ed Payne, bounded on the south by Hudspeth Avenue,
containing 2 acres, more or less,

All of the foregoing described property contains 2% acres, more or less and by up-1o-
date boundaries is described as follows:

Bounded on the west By the property of Lula Bradley, and the property of Jess
Bradley (now Jackson Trust), bounded on the north by Mortis Street, bounded on the
east by Hudspeth Avenue and bounded on the south by Hudspeth Avenue.

Being a part of the same property conveyed to Nancy B. Jackson and Wilbun A.
Jackson, trustees of the Wilbum A, Jackson and Nancy B. Jackson Trust by Nancy

Bailey Jackson and spouse, Wilburn A. Jackson by deed dated December 23, 2005,
of record in Deed Book 262, Page 272, Simpson County Clerk’s Office.

EXHIBIT 3

P. 68



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-017
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN RELATING TO AN EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISEE
TO COLLECT, TRANSPORT AND DISPOSE
OF COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE
WITHIN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN AND
SIMPSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY

WHEREAS, on or about September 4, 2013, the City and Franchisee entered into that
certain Exclusive Commercial and Residential Franchise Agreement, as subsequently modified,
amended, and/or extended (the “Original City Agreement”), for the collection, transportation,
and disposal of all commercial and residential Solid Waste, wastewater treatment plant waste,
and oversized goods within the Franklin I'ranchise Area;

WHEREAS, on or about October 1, 2016, the City and Franchisee amended that certain

Exclusive Commercial and Residential Franchise Agreement (the “First Amendment to the City

Agreement”);

WHEREAS, on or about June 16, 2015, the County And Franchisee entered into that
certain Exclusive Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Franchise Agreement (the “Original
County Agreement”), for the collection, transportation, and disposal of all residential,
commercial and industrial Solid Waste, wastewater treatment plant waste, and oversized goods

within the Franklin and Simpson County Franchise Area; and

WHEREAS, the County and City wish to combine their respective agreements with
Franchisee and to extend the term thereof, adjust the rates thereunder, and to otherwise modify
the Original City Agreement, as amended, and the Original County Agreement as provided for in

the attached Agreement.

P. 69



WHEREAS, City and County staffs recommended that the City Commission and Fiscal
Court issue an exclusive franchise to collect, transport and dispose of commercial and residential
solid waste within the City of Franklin and Simpson County because multiple franchisees would
increase large truck traffic in the City and County leading to increased wear and tear on the
roadways and an increase in potential traffic hazards caused by the need for collection vehicles
to stop frequently in the roadway during collection;

WHEREAS, City and County staffs recommended that the City Commission and Fiscal
Court issue an exclusive franchise to collect, transport and dispose of residential, commercial
and Wastewater Treatment Plant solid waste within the City and County because of the need to
maintain uniformity and minimize confusion of collection times that would be caused by
multiple franchisees servicing residents, and the synergies and cost savings associated with
having one franchisee to perform the services for both the City and County.

WHEREAS, the Franklin City Commission and Simpson Fiscal Court, by and through
this Ordinance, adopt the recommendations of City and County staffs and agree to extend the
existing franchise to Scott to collect, transport and dispose of the Wastewater Treatment Plant
cake sludge, and the commercial and residential solid waste within the City of Franklin and
Simpson County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of
Franklin, Kentucky and the Fiscal Court of the County of Simpson, Kentucky that the attached
Simpson County and City of Franklin Exclusive Commercial and Residential Amended and
Restated Franchise Agreement which is incorporated herein by reference be approved and that

the Mayor and County Judge Executive be authorized to execute said agreement on behalf of the

P. 70



City of Franklin and Simpson County, Kentucky, respectively.

The City and County shall have the authority to bring an action against any party who
violates the exclusive franchise which is granted pursuant to the Agreement, to enjoin such party
from such violation, impose a fine of $1,000 per day of violation, obtain damages and obtain
other relief that may be allowed pursuant to applicable law from such party.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall
be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holdings shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions of Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such

conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on
, on motion made by and
seconded by , the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after
full discussion, by the following vote:

JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

P. 71



APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 72



